QUESTION TYPE 3:  ISSUE-SPOTTER

Question Type 3 is the traditional law-school issue-spotter.  There will be more for you to talk about than you have time for in a one hour question.  Your job is to show me both that you see the range of issues involved and that you can identify and focus on those issues that would be most heavily contested.  The best answers will point out places where the doctrine does not provide clear answers and make suggestions about statutory and policy arguments that could be used to resolve the doctrinal uncertainties.

3A.  Clayton is a city of about 60,000 people located in a rural area, relatively far from any other city.  The city’s main claim to fame is that it is home to Altered State University (ASU).  The non-student population of Clayton is about 60% white, 35% African-American, and 5% Asian-American.  The student population at Clayton is about 65% white, about 25% Asian-American, about 8% African-American, and about 2% Native American.  


Roundtree Heights is a neighborhood near the ASU campus that contains apartment buildings that primarily house students and service employees of the university.  It is the most integrated area in the city. However, most of the people in the rest of Clayton live in quite segregated neighborhoods.

 
Doug Davis is a Vietnam War veteran who lost one arm during the War and is quite bitter about his fate and about the way Vietnam vets are treated in the U.S.  He owns a 25-unit apartment complex in Roundtree Heights.   During the 1995-96 school year, he had several complaints from his non-student tenants that students living in nearby buildings made a lot of noise.  In addition, there was a highly publicized incident across town in which ASU students, during a party, accidentally burned down the building that they were living in.  For Doug, the last straw came when one of his student tenants moved out at the end of May, leaving behind damage to the carpeting and wallpaper that cost Doug twice the security deposit to repair.  After that, he instituted a new policy forbidding new student tenants.  A number of other landlords across the city made similar decisions about the same time.


Sally Spirit owns several apartment complexes, including one next door to Doug’s.  A graduate of ASU, Sally participates regularly in ASU alumni and fund-raising events.  Alarmed by the trend toward “no-student” policies, Sally decided to do her part to insure that ASU students could receive affordable housing.   She instituted a “students-only” policy for all new tenancies in her complexes.  To try to reach the students, she decided to take out a number of ads in the local paper announcing the new policy.  Because she was on a tight budget, she used the same advertising copy each time.  She used a picture in the ad that she had taken herself with a cheap Polaroid camera.  It showed three of her Asian student tenants sitting at a table studying. The headline in the ad announced “Student-Only Housing:  Safe Spaces for Study and Quiet Living.”  The ad ran once a week for six weeks.


Penny Pringle lives in Doug’s apartment complex.  She is a professional party planner—that is, she helps people plan and throw interesting parties, often picking a theme and ordering food and decorations.  Her specialty is relatively authentic ethnic theme parties.  Within the last year, she has researched and created for her clients a Japanese Tea Ceremony, an Ashanti Baby-Naming Ceremony, a Malay fertility ritual, and a Lithuanian Christmas pageant.   When she heard about Doug’s “no-students” policy, she went to him and complained, “But that means you’ll have almost no Asian tenants.”  He replied, “Obviously,” and walked away.  Penny thought about moving into Sally’s apartment complex next door, but saw Sally’s ad and realized that she did not qualify due to Sally’s “students-only” policy.


Penny brought suit against both Doug and Sally, claiming that the “no-students” policy, the “students-only” policy, and Sally’s advertisements all violated the federal Fair Housing Act.  Discuss whether Penny’s suit would be successful.

3B.
Benjamin is the property manager for Sharpe Tower, a 90-unit high-rise apartment building. He is a member of an orthodox Jewish sect that believes in strict adherence to traditional religious laws.  For example, they believe that it was heresy for Jews to try to resettle Israel without the coming of the messiah prophesied in the Bible.  Because of their religious beliefs, they frown heavily on the many Jews in the U.S. who do not follow traditional teachings, particularly those who support Israel, do any work on the Sabbath (from sundown Friday until sundown Saturday), or marry people of other faiths.


Benjamin lives with his parents in a house that his father owns.   He himself owns three single-family houses nearby which he rents out.  He also owns a lot next door to his parents’ house on which he is building another single-family house.  In addition, he recently inherited a single-family house in France from a relative. 

Recently, one of Benjamin’s rental houses has become vacant.  Because of his religious beliefs, Benjamin requires his tenants to agree in their leases not to eat pork or shellfish on the premises (eating pork and shellfish is forbidden under traditional Jewish dietary laws).  In the past, he has had some trouble explaining this requirement to prospective tenants.  This time, in the classified ads he takes out in the local newspaper, he includes the phrase, “No pork or shellfish allowed on premises.”

Rebecca was recently hired as an Assistant Professor at a university located in the city where Benjamin lives.  Although she was born in Israel, Rebecca went to college and graduate school in the United States.  Like many Israelis, Rebecca considers herself Jewish but is not particularly devout.  However, she regularly wears around her neck a Star of David, a traditional symbol of Judaism.

Rebecca came to town a couple of months before her new job was to start in order to look for housing.  A friend told her about Sharpe Tower.  When she arrived, Benjamin took her to see several available apartments.  While he was showing her the units, they chatted pleasantly about her new job and about the city.  Afterward she came back to his office and filled out an application form, which requested financial and other background information.  Benjamin looked over her completed form and said, “Assuming this all checks out, you won’t have any trouble getting a place here, if you want one.  But I have a better idea.  I have a small house that’s available for rent right away.  You’ll have more room; you’ll have more privacy.  Let’s set up a time.  You’ll see it, you’ll love it.”

Rebecca replied, “That sounds interesting.  Why don’t we process the application here just in case, but I can come see your house on Saturday.”

Benjamin’s smile froze.  “I don’t work Saturday.”

“I understand it’s the weekend,” she said.  “But I’m only in town for a few days; can’t you make time?”

“It’s the Sabbath,” he answered.  “And since you don’t really have time to see the house…”

“No, no,” she said.  “I’ll have time.  I just didn’t think anyone cared that much any more about the Sabbath.  I have some time tonight; when do you get off work here?”

Reluctantly, Benjamin arranged to meet Rebecca that evening at the house.  When she arrived, she was accompanied by Chris, an African-American friend who worked at the university. In his left ear, Chris sported a small earring in the shape of a cross.  Benjamin silently showed them around the house, often staring at Chris.  However, Rebecca and Chris both liked the house a lot.  After the tour, Benjamin pulled Rebecca aside and said, “If both of you are going to be in the house, he will need to fill out a separate application.”

Rebecca stared at him.  “No.  I’m going to live here alone.  We’re not together.  Don’t tell me that’s why you’ve become so cold with me.  I have lots of friends of all races, and they have to be welcome in my house….”

Benjamin cut her off.  “No, no, no, no. You can have any friends you want visit here.  Black, red, green, whatever.  No problem.  I just thought you were really together, and, I mean, it’s really none of my business.”

Rebecca glared at him.  “Right.  It isn’t.  Anything else I need to worry about if I want the place?”

“No pork or shellfish,” he said.

“That’s crazy!” she shouted.  “If it’s my house, I eat what I want.  I don’t see why just because you decide that God cares whether you eat scallops, I have to go along with you.  Part of the reason I left Israel is so I don’t have rabbis watching everything I do.”  

At that point Chris cut in.  “Rebecca, calm down.  It’s a great place.  Take it.  We can eat scallops at my house.”

Benjamin shook his head.  “I’m sorry.  A rude person with such a temper, I don’t need.  I don’t want to do business with you here or at the Tower.  Find somewhere else.”  

Discuss whether Benjamin has violated any of the federal statutes we have studied.

3C.  Kimberly Lin is a Chinese-American who owns an apartment complex called Linwood Estates that houses about 800 people. During the 1960’s, she was a frequent anti-war and civil rights protester.  Despite her activist past, she currently is very much a capitalist.  

Recently, faced with a large number of vacancies in her complex, she decided to run a large full-color ad in the Sunday edition of her local newspaper.  The ad consisted of 9 photos of actual tenants enjoying themselves around the complex.  Although about 15% of the tenants are African-Americans, 8 of the photos showed only white people and the ninth showed an Asian-American family.  All of the people in the photos were standing in front of buildings, swimming, or playing tennis.  The text of the ad read “Linwood:  An oasis of old-fashioned luxury and relaxing activities, isolated from the threats of modern inner city life, yet walking distance from everything you could ever need.”  

Many people responded to the ad, and she filled most of the available units within four days.  All but one of the families that came to the complex in this period were white.  However, she did rent to the one African-American family that applied.


Peter Ferrell is an African-American veteran of the Vietnam War whose war wounds have left him generally confined to a wheelchair.  About a week after seeing the ad described above, he decided to view Linwood.  Although Kimberly tried to show him around Linwood, the complex was built before 1988 and only the ground floor apartments were wheelchair accessible, and none of them was available.  Although the upper floors were accessible by elevator, the apartments on those floors each had a step up at the entrance.  During the tour, Peter indicated that he’d be willing to pay to have a ramp installed if he could have an upper floor apartment.  Kimberly replied, “Um, sure, I guess so.  If it doesn’t interfere with the other tenants.  But wouldn’t you be safer, if there was a fire or something, on the ground floor?”  Peter said that he thought he could take care of himself in an emergency “because of my experience in ‘Nam.”


Afterward, Kimberly reported this conversation to her boyfriend, David.  David said, “Well, all those Vietnam vets are crazy anyway, aren’t they?  It’s probably dangerous to even have him here.”   She replied, “I don’t know about that, but if he finds out I marched against the war, he’ll probably make trouble.  Besides, in my experience, Vets don’t like Asians much anyway.”  

After some further thought, she decided to rent the four remaining available units to other people, none of whom were disabled, and all of whom were white or Asian-American.  After these rentals, there was only one person with a physical disability in the whole complex, an elderly woman who lived with her daughter and grandson in a ground floor apartment.

Assume that the following statistics are correct:

- 10% of the people in the suburban county in which Linwood Estates is located are African-American

- 7% of Americans have a physical disability that significantly impairs their mobility

- 26% of Vietnam veterans are African American

- 23% of Vietnam veterans have a physical disability that significantly impairs their mobility

Assume also that there is no independent cause of action for discrimination in housing against veterans.  Discuss what federal causes of action Peter might bring against Kimberly and whether they would succeed.

3D. “SUPERDAD SEEKS HOUSING”

Please discuss the existence and likely success of  any causes of action under the federal Fair Housing Act that might arise in the following scenario.  You should assume that none of the exemptions created by 42 U.S.C. §3603 or §3607 apply here.


Lois Lanier owns and manages Quiet Corners (QC),  a 47-unit apartment complex in a midwestern University town.  QC consists of one and two bedroom apartments arranged around a central courtyard and mainly houses graduate students and senior citizens. In addition to the swimming pool in the courtyard, QC’s amenities include a library that contains a wide variety of fiction and reference books.  The library is one of the primary attractions of QC.  Posted library rules prohibit conversation.  Residents are free to use it 24 hours a day and it is protected by a good security system so it is safe late at night. Many a graduate student with an unpleasant roommate and many a sleepless senior citizen have found refuge at the study tables or in the comfortable reading chairs.

As of  late July 1997, only two households at QC included children.  Lois herself shares her a two-bedroom third floor apartment with her fourteen-year old daughter.  In addition, the Olsons, a young married couple who also have a third-floor two-bedroom apartment, have a baby boy that was born in May.  Two apartments were vacant in late July:  a one-bedroom on the ground floor courtyard right next to the library, and a two-bedroom on the third floor.

Clark Cantor is a widower and the father of two twin six-year old boys, Tommy and Timmy.  In July 1997, Clark left a job at an investment bank in Chicago to begin law school at the University.  As part of his search for housing, he and the twins visited QC. 

Lois had Clark fill out an application. She then took the Cantors on a tour of QC, showing them the two available apartments and all of the amenities.  Three different times during the tour, the twins began to fight noisily, although each time their father stopped them after a minute or two.  After the break-up of the second fight (which took place on the second floor), Tommy ran down a nearby flight of stairs and began racing around the pool yelling.  Clark took off after him, briefly leaving Timmy with Lois.  Clark grabbed Tommy, knelt down beside him and gave him a brief lecture.  Tommy then returned quietly upstairs with his father.  As the tour progressed, Clark perceived that Lois was getting increasingly tense and steadily less friendly.

The tour ended in the library, which was otherwise empty.  Clark found books with pictures of animals on the shelves and set the twins up at separate tables looking at them.  He sat down in one of the reading chairs and smiled up at Lois.  “This place is great.  After I pick the boys up at day care after school, we can swim in the pool and tire them out, and then I can do study after they go to sleep.  And sometimes I can bring them in here to read while I work.  I really like that one-bedroom right between here and the pool.  That seems perfect.”

Lois frowned and sat down on the edge of a nearby chair.  “Wouldn’t you rather have the two-bedroom upstairs?” she asked.  “The boys would have more room, and you could use the second bedroom as both your room and a study.”

Clark replied, “We’ll have enough room.  I have bunk beds for the boys, and I’ll sleep on the fold-out sofa.  I really prefer to be on the ground floor so I don’t have to worry about them having to go up and down stairs, especially when their feet are wet from the pool.  Besides, even though I think I have enough money put away to take care of us for three years, the eighty dollars a month I’d save by taking the one-bedroom really will add up.”

Lois started to reply, but at that moment Timmy loudly ripped a picture of a zebra out of the book he was looking at.  “Zee-bwah,” he announced proudly.  Clark leapt up and took the page from Timmy’s hand and took the boy into a corner.  After a quiet but intense conversation, Timmy went over to Lois and said, “I’m sowwy I wipped yow book. I won’t never do it again.”  Clark added, “I’m sorry, usually they’re a lot better.  They’ve been upset because they don’t want to move.  If you’ll take an out-of-state check, I can pay for the book right now.”

“Don’t worry about it,” Lois answered.

“Look, I have to look at another apartment across town in about an hour,” Clark continued, “but I really like the one-bedroom.  How about I call you later?”

“Sure.” said Lois, shaking her head as Clark gathered the boys and headed out.

When Lois exited the library, Winona White was waiting.  Mrs. White, a widow, lived in the apartment next to the one-bedroom that was for rent.  She shook her finger at Lois.  “I hope you don’t mean to put those noisy twins in beside me,” she said.  I have enough trouble with the noise from the pool, without a couple of out-of-control kids running around under my windows.  You do everything you can to get rid of them.  I’ve told you before, I’ll move if Quiet Corners stops being quiet!”

“Yes, Mrs. White,” sighed Lois and returned to her office.  When she got there, she sat and thought a bit, then called the number Clark had left on his application.  She got an answering machine, and left a message saying, “After thinking about it some more, I’d be much more comfortable if you were in the two-bedroom apartment.”

When Clark got home and heard the message, he decided to take a one-bedroom apartment he had seen across town from QC.  It was more expensive than the one-bedroom at QC, but less expensive than the two-bedroom.  He called QC and left a message that he was no longer interested.  A few days later, Lois rented the two-bedroom to the Perrys, a married couple with an eight-year old daughter.  She had some trouble renting the one-bedroom, but just before school started, rented it to two male college sophomores over the loud objections of Mrs. White.

3E.
The Mississippi Military Institute (MMI) is a four-year college and military training academy located in the town of Spradley, Mississippi.  In order to fulfill the requirements of both their collegiate studies and the various aspects of their military training, MMI students are required to live in barracks on the MMI campus 12 months a year.  Unlike some similar institutions, MMI began admitting female students in the late 1970’s.  However, relatively few young women seem interested in MMI’s rigorous training and harsh hazing rituals. Thus, between 90 and 95% of its graduates in each of the last twelve years have been men.


Students who graduate in the top half of their class at MMI generally find good jobs in cities throughout the U.S.  However, in recent years many MMI alumni with weaker academic records have had trouble finding employment.  An increasing number of these graduates remain in Spradley, often taking relatively low paying part-time jobs and spending their spare time participating in activities on campus, hunting in the nearby woods, or just hanging out together.   Because they don’t have a lot of money, groups of the male graduates often pool their resources to rent large old houses that have four or five bedrooms.  In some cases, as many as fifteen MMI alumni share one of these houses.  


Recently, several unfortunate incidents involving MMI graduates took place in Spradley.  First, residents of several shared houses were arrested on the same night in different parts of town for drunk and disorderly conduct after the MMI basketball team won an important home game.  Second, a fire in one of the shared homes seriously injured two of the young men living there.  The fire inspector determined that crowded conditions in the house (which contained thirteen MMI alumni and their gear) had contributed to the rapid spread of the fire and had hindered the escape of the two injured men.  Third, a young woman was assaulted by three men on the outskirts of town. Although she could not identify her attackers, she believed that two of them were wearing MMI uniforms. At the time of the assault, all the current MMI students were involved in a group exercise on campus.  


As a result of these incidents, the mayor of Spradley proposed that the town pass a law to limit the availability of shared housing.  The town attorney drafted a zoning ordinance that limited the number of unrelated individuals living in a single-family home to one more than the number of bedrooms in the house.  In other words, only five unrelated individuals could live in a four-bedroom house; only three could live in a two-bedroom house, etc.  

At the public hearing on the ordinance, the mayor urged the zoning board to pass it, noting that, “These young hooligans won’t be able to afford to live together any more unless they get real jobs.”  Members of the public also spoke out at the hearing, expressing concern about noise, drunkenness, and safety.  The mother of the young woman who had been assaulted broke down in tears and begged the board to “break up” the group houses, saying, “No woman can be safe in a town that lets groups of young men trained to do murder live together like animals.”  The zoning board unanimously passed the ordinance.

Ellen and Florence are sisters who recently inherited a five-bedroom house in Spradley.  They decided to each live in one bedroom and to rent out the other three.  After hearing about the recent events in the city, they established a policy of not renting to MMI alumni.  When the zoning ordinance became effective, many MMI graduates were evicted from group living situations.  Some of these young men applied to rent rooms in the sisters’ house, but Ellen and Florence refused to rent to them because of the policy.

A group of young male MMI alumni brought suit under the federal Fair Housing Act against the town of Spradley and against Ellen and Florence contending that the zoning ordinance and the no alumni policy each constituted illegal sex discrimination because each disproportionately disadvantaged men.  

Discuss whether these disparate impact claims are likely to succeed.  Assume that the plaintiffs have standing to bring the claims.  Assume that the §3607(b)(1) exemption does not apply to this case.  Mississippi is located in the 5th Circuit, which you may assume has never addressed a disparate impact claim under the Fair Housing Act.

3F.
Jamil and Amina Dalghabi are Bosnian Muslim immigrants from former Yugoslavia.  They came to the U.S. 7 years ago, escaping with several members of their family and a fair amount of money.  They have invested their savings in real estate.  In addition to the condominium they live in, they own three single-family homes that they rent out and a small apartment building that contains four two-bedroom units.  

Amina’s father, Yussef, came to the U.S. with the Dalghabis.  A wealthy widower when he arrived, he soon married Carol, a real estate agent.  Carol cheerfully retired, and set about spending Yussef’s money and making him a comfortable home.  

Early this year, one of the Dalghabis’ single family homes became vacant.  They had little luck renting it and asked Carol for help.  She notified some of her friends in the business that the house was available, but did not create an official listing at any agency.  Carol’s friends sent a couple of families to look at the house, but none was interested in renting it.

Paul Przec is also an immigrant from former Yugoslavia who came over to the U.S. about the same time as the Dalghabis.  Unlike Amina and Jamil, he is Serbian and a member of the Eastern Orthodox church.  For several years, he worked as a Chemistry Professor at a major American university but was denied tenure.  He currently works at a local community college.  He has a probationary position, meaning that he is currently employed for six months, and if things work out, he will be given a two- or three-year contract.  

After the salary cut that came with his job change, Paul needed to sell his house and look for a cheaper place to live.  One of his colleagues was an acquaintance of the Dalghabis and suggested that Paul should talk to them “because you’re all from Yugoslavia.”  When Paul talked to Jamil on the phone, he decided both the price and the location were perfect and arranged to view the house in person.  He did not mention where he was from during the phone conversation.

Jamil took Paul on a tour of the house, cheerfully pointing out the amenities of the house.  Later, they sat down to talk about a possible lease.  Paul told Jamil his salary, and Jamil thought it was sufficient to pay the rent, although not by a great deal.  Jamil said they would only lease the house for one year or longer, and Paul said that would be no problem.  

As Paul filled out the rental application, Jamil asked where he was from.  Paul, realizing from Jamil’s name that he was probably a Moslem, explained that he was from Serbia, but quickly added that he had worked for the resistance against the communist government.  Jamil frowned, took the application, and said only that he’d get back to Paul.

Jamil and Amina normally discussed all their business decisions with her father and Carol.  The Dalghabis respected the older couple’s business sense, and, as Jamil said, “We’re more likely to see more of the old man’s money the more happy we keep him.”  The day after Paul’s tour, the family discussed his application.  Yussef was very firm in his opinion that Paul should not get the house.  “The Serbians have destroyed our people; we can’t have them sleeping under our roof.”  “But papa,” Amina protested, “he was a member of the resistance.”  “They’re always members of the resistance afterward,” grumbled the old man.  “If you really are part of my family, you won’t give a roof to someone who helped destroy our people!”

Jamil was unsure what to do.  He had certainly never rented to a Serbian before, but he had no other offers for the house. He conducted a credit check on Paul and called his employer.  While Paul’s credit record was excellent, demonstrating that he always paid bills on time, it also showed that he had a lot of credit card debt.  Jamil also discovered that Paul’s job was probationary, something Paul hadn’t revealed either orally or on the application.  Although Paul had never lied to Jamil, and neither Jamil nor the application had asked whether Paul’s job was permanent, Jamil felt as though he had been misled.  

After Jamil discussed these developments with Amina, they decided to say no to Paul.  They called him, and told him that they were turning him down because they were concerned that he did not have a guaranteed job for the whole period of the lease and that he had a lot of debt.  Two months later, they rented the house to a Chinese-American newspaper reporter, whose salary was a little less than Paul’s.

Discuss any federal causes of action Paul might have and how likely they are to succeed. 

3G.
Katie is a 35-year old lawyer who is a partner in a large urban law firm.  Last year, she was in a serious car accident that severely injured her legs.  She currently can move short distances using crutches and leg braces, but must spend most of her time in a wheelchair.  She has a large, specially equipped van that she uses to drive to work.


Recently, Katie rented an apartment in the Pixie Pines apartment complex.  Although Pixie Pines usually requires its tenants to sign at least one-year leases, the manager, Samantha, agreed to allow Katie a six-month lease, so Katie could see “if the complex really is usable with my handicap.”  Samantha also agreed to allow Katie to widen the doorways in her apartment.


Pixie Pines does not usually reserve parking spaces for its tenants.  However, Samantha and Katie agreed that Katie would receive a reserved parking spot in the row of spaces closest to her apartment.  Because of the size of the van, it did not fit into the existing spaces, so Samantha created one large space for Katie out of two adjoining spaces.  Other tenants complained repeatedly that Katie had effectively received two reserved spaces when none of the other tenants had even one.


Katie hired Gizmo Contracting to work on her doorways. In order to get the work done as quickly as possible, she encouraged them to arrive very early in the morning on the days they were working.  They began work at 6:30 am each day for the week it took them to complete the work.  Neighbors complained to Samantha about the early morning noise.  When Samantha approached Katie, Katie noted, “The longer they work each day, the sooner the noise will be over.” Samantha took no further action.


Katie’s stressful work life combined with her injury made it very difficult for her to sleep.  Thus, she was very sensitive to noise at night.  Several times during her tenancy, she called the police about parties in the complex and she frequently complained to Samantha about noisy neighbors above her.


On her occasional day off, Katie liked to wheel herself out to the pool and lie in the sun.  Samantha’s cousin, Zeke, who also lived in the complex, worked nights, and often sunned himself by the pool during the day.  One day, he noticed Katie there, and called out, “Hey pretty lady, how’s it rollin’?”  Katie ignored him.  Zeke persisted:  “I don’t know what happened to your legs, but the rest of you sure looks fine.”  Katie glared at him and said, “I’m not interested, thank you.”  Zeke shrugged, rolled over, and went to sleep.  

The next time Katie went out to the pool, Zeke was there and again attempted conversation.  “Hey, pretty lady.  You look great today.  It’s sure is a shame such a foxy lady is stuck in a chair like that.”  Katie replied, “I’d appreciate it if you just let me alone.”  Stung, Zeke replied, “Well excuse me for trying a compliment.”  

A week later, when Katie went by the pool in a new bathing suit, Zeke whistled at her.  She immediately wheeled to Samantha’s office, explained what had happened, and demanded that Samantha do something.  Samantha rushed out to the pool and told Zeke to leave Katie alone.  Zeke never spoke to or whistled at Katie again, but whenever she went out to the pool, Zeke would move his chair so he was facing her.  Although Katie complained repeatedly to Samantha, the manager said that Zeke had as much right to sit by the pool as Katie did.

When Katie’s six-month lease was about to expire, she went to Samantha to arrange to sign a new lease.  Samantha refused, saying, “The whole thing has been more trouble than it’s worth.”  

Discuss whether Katie would have a successful claim under the federal Fair Housing Act for Samantha’s refusal to renew the lease.  Assume that Samantha’s decision does not violate relevant landlord-tenant law.

3H.
Derek Developer owns Happiland, a large three-story apartment complex consisting of two- and three-bedroom apartments.  Many of his tenants were groups of students from nearby colleges.  Aware of a growing number of relatively well-off young workers in new computer companies in the area, last year Derek purchased Trendy Towers (TT), a new high-rise building containing only one-bedroom apartments.  


As soon as the sale was final, Derek ran an advertisement in the local newspapers that showed pictures of TT and its facilities.  The pictures showed one man and one woman in their twenties dressed in business attire.  The headline on the ad read, “You’ve finally got a grown-up job. Isn’t it time you found a grown-up place to live?”  The text underneath the pictures said, “1-bedroom starter apartments from $1000 a month.  Rent includes access to Trendy Towers’ exclusive 24-hour gym and pool (no lifeguards).”  Derek had handbills made up that had the same pictures and text as the ad and passed them out at the nearby colleges and to his Happiland tenants.


Shortly after he purchased TT, Derek began a new practice of notifying tenants at Happiland when a new tenant arrived.  The first of these notices read: 

Welcome to José and Ericka Perez and 3-year old Kathleen, joining us in Apartment 283.  The management is delighted to see another young family in the complex.  We hope shortly to institute some programs designed especially for all the youngsters who seem to be joining us lately.  If you know of other young families who are looking for apartments, please have them contact us.  We’d love to talk to them.

In the months following the advent of this practice, several recent college graduates moved out of Happiland and into TT.  Meanwhile, more families with children moved into Happiland, and Derek installed a swing set and some see-saws on the Happiland grounds.  He also began holding special events like barbecues and pool parties for the families with children.


Last month, Ann Vitro came to TT to apply to rent an apartment.  She was visibly very pregnant.  After one of Derek’s assistants showed her around the facilities, she sat down at a desk beside Derek to fill out the application form.  

Derek  smiled at Ann and said, “Are you sure there will be enough room for the three of you once the baby is born?  I have some very nice two- and three-bedroom apartments for rent not far from here.”

Ann frowned and said, “There will only be the two of us living here.”

“Oh, I see.  But I’m sure the father will want to come see the child sometimes,” Derek insisted.

“Not that it’s any of your business, but the father is a sperm donor, and does not even know the baby is on the way,” said Ann.

“How brave of you,” said Derek.  “I’ve never met anyone who tried that.  Look, I’m a little concerned if you’re going to be on your own.  The only vacancies I have are sixteen or eighteen stories up.  You’re not going to be able to get out of the building very fast when the baby comes, especially if you’ll have no help.  Are you sure you wouldn’t like to look at something on the first or second floor of my other building?  There’ll be lots of regular mothers around to help you out with things ….”

“Oh, forget it,” said Ann.  “Go find regular mothers to be your tenants.”  She ripped the application form in two and stormed out the door.

Discuss whether Derek has violated any of the statutes we have studied in the course.

3I.
Mission Ganácion is a very old, very picturesque, but very poor small city located in the American Southwest 65 miles from the large city of San Angelo.  80% of its residents consider themselves Mexican-American, Native American, or a combination of the two categories.   Most of the other residents consider themselves “white” and fewer than 2% of the residents consider themselves to be African- or Asian-Americans.  More than half of the families in Mission Ganácion subsist on incomes below the federal poverty line, mainly eking out their living by growing crops on small irrigated lots and by selling craft items to tourists.  

Mission Ganácion owns two large public parks.  The first, Feinberg Field, is a large meadow located adjacent to the main highway through the city.  By tradition, the resident children spend most of their spare time in this park, and the craftspeople set up booths and blankets there to sell their wares to tourists.  On most days, Feinberg Field is full of people from daybreak well into the evening.  

The second park, Ramos Ridge, is located at the edge of town along a cliff overlooking the Arizona River.  It is a quiet space that remains relatively untouched by humans.  By tradition, residents keep the park very clean and use it only to engage in relatively quiet activities like long walks, making out, meditation and prayer. 

Betty Bilder builds luxury townhouses designed as weekend getaways for San Angelo residents.  She wanted to develop Ramos Ridge and offered to buy it from Mission Ganácion for a price that local real estate brokers think is fair.  The sum would be sufficient for the city to do useful capital improvements to schools, roads, and other municipal facilities, projects for which it has trouble finding money in its annual budget.  

Bilder’s marketing plan for the Ramos Ridge project targeted a group of city-dwellers with a minimum household income of $300,000.  In San Angelo, about 75% of the residents of households in that income range identify themselves as “white,” about 15% identify-themselves as Asian-Americans, about 8% as Mexican-Americans, and less than 1% each as African-Americans and Native Americans.  The mix of residents in other projects Bilder has completed near San Angelo roughly mirror the ethnic/racial breakdown of the target group.

While the 5-person City Council of Mission Ganácion was considering Bilder's offer, one of the Council-members inadvertently told his sister, Edna Virenz, about the offer.  Virenz, who regularly went up to Ramos Ridge to do Tai Chi exercises, immediately began passing out flyers that described the proposed project in unflattering terms.  The flyers contained the following statement:

Ramos Ridge is an important part of our community traditions. Our unique culture requires both space like Feinberg Fields for community interaction and space like Ramos Ridge for individuals to be alone with nature.  Selling the Ridge to outsiders would destroy our sense of being a part of a historic and peaceful community because we would (1) lose the opportunity for tranquil relaxation at the Ridge; (2) have people among us who lack our shared history; and (3) get forced into hostile interactions with wealthy outsiders with no appreciation for who we are or how we do things here. The Southwest has barely maintained its culture after past outsider invasions.  We must forcefully resist any new invasions.

Alerted by the flyers, many residents expressed disapproval of the sale to the Council.  Although the law did not require it, the Council-members held a public meeting to get more complete public input.  They did not notify Bilder of the meeting and she did not attend.  At the meeting, the Chair first laid out the proposal and the projects the city could undertake with the proceeds.  Residents were then allowed to speak.  Although a few indicated they wanted the sale to go forward, most residents indicated disapproval, generally focusing on the traditions of the community or the disruption that “outsiders” would bring.  

Virenz was the last resident to speak.  She said, “I have had an opportunity to talk to many of my fellow citizens in private and I think it’s fair to say, although they might not say so in public, if you give our Ridge away to outsiders, you can be sure that the outsiders will regret coming here.”  This brought forth a loud cheer from most of the assembled residents.

As soon as the cheer subsided, the Chair moved that the City Council vote immediately on the sale.  The Council-members voted 4-1 to reject the sale.  Virenz’s brother voted with the majority.

Discuss any causes of action arising out of these facts that Bilder might have under the federal Fair Housing Act.  Assume that nothing about Bilder’s proposed project would itself violate any fair housing or other laws.

3J.  Based on the following set of facts, Greg Grinch brought an action claiming that Kris Ma had violated §3604(a) and (c) of the federal Fair Housing Act.  Discuss whether his claims are likely to succeed.  Assume that his claims do not implicate the First Amendment.

Kao-Tse (Kris) Ma and her husband emigrated to the United States from Taiwan about thirty years ago.  Her husband became a Chemistry Professor at Gesell University.  They purchased a big house near the university with a guest cottage in the backyard.  After her husband died ten years ago, Kris had the big house divided into three apartments that had separate bathrooms but shared the original kitchen.  She then moved into the guest cottage and rented out the three apartments.  As part of the lease arrangements, Kris would cook dinner for her tenants three times a week in the common kitchen in the big house and then eat with them.

Until last August, Kris never had any trouble keeping her three apartments rented out.  Initially, she leased them to former students of her husband.  Since then, vacancies had been filled by word of mouth among Chemistry graduate students and friends of other residents of the house.  Of the twenty-one tenants Kris has had, 14 were Chinese or Chinese-American, 4 were other Asian-Americans, two were German, and one was Dutch.  

At the end of this past July, one of Kris’s tenants moved out.  Neither the tenant who was leaving nor the two who remained knew of anyone who wanted the empty apartment. Kris put a sign in front of the house that said “Apartment for Rent” but there was not a lot of traffic on her street so few people saw the sign. Kris had some friends in the Chemistry Department post a sign advertising the vacancy, but nobody responded. 


One of Kris’s tenants, Steve Soo, was a professor in the Gesell Computer Science Department.  He ran a website that provided information for Chinese students studying at U.S. universities called Dr. Soo’s Haven for Chinese Students in America.  Knowing that many Chinese students studying at Gesell visited his website, Steve offered to post an ad for Kris. He took an instant photograph of her standing in front of the big house wearing an apron and holding a wok and a set of long cooking chopsticks.  He scanned the photo into the computer, and posted it on his site with text in Mandarin Chinese and English that gave standard information about the apartment and concluded “Plus great Chinese home-style cooking three nights a week!  You’ll forget you are in America!”


Greg Grinch was an American of Eastern European descent who was beginning his second year at Gesell School of Law.  Three days after the ad was posted on the web, Greg saw the sign in front of Kris’s house and inquired about the apartment.  While Kris was showing Greg around, Steve came out of his apartment.  After Kris had introduced the two men, Steve looked at Greg in a puzzled way and asked, “How come you were looking at my website?”  When Greg looked confused, Steve continued, “Didn’t you find this place from the ad on the Dr. Soo’s website?”  Greg responded that he has seen the sign in the street.  Steve replied, “Oh, that makes much more sense,” and left abruptly.


After the tour, Greg explained to Kris (who had never rented to a law student before) that he had no present income, but that he had loan money and savings from which he could afford to pay the deposit and rent she requested.  Greg left his phone number with Kris, who said she’d call him “soon” about the apartment. Kris felt uncomfortable with Greg, and also wasn’t sure she wanted a law student in the house.  She decided to wait a few days to see if anyone else inquired.


Three mornings later, Greg was surfing the net and came across Dr. Soo’s website.  When he found Kris’s ad, his immediate reaction was “Well, no wonder she hasn’t called. I’m sure not what she’s looking for.”  He called Kris and left a message on her answering machine that said, “Hi, this is Greg Grinch.  I looked at your apartment the other day.  School is starting soon and I need to know right away if I will be able to get it, but I saw your Chinese cooking ad and I guess I’ll understand if you want somebody who’d be more at home.”


That afternoon, Steve brought home Cindy-Lou Hu, a Chinese-American graduate student in the Mathematics Department.  Like many graduate students in arts and sciences, Cindy-Lou had a small but steady income from teaching undergraduate courses.  Steve told Kris that Cindy-Lou “will fit right in here.”  Cindy-Lou and Kris hit it off right away and Kris decided to rent the apartment to her.  Kris called Greg and told him that she had decided to rent to someone else “because she has a job with money coming in regularly.”

3K.  Based on the following set of facts, Renee Red-Eagle has sued Lucy Land claiming that she violated 42 U.S.C. §§1982 and 3604 by refusing to rent a house because of race and familial status.  Discuss whether Renee should prevail under either or both of these statutes.


Lucy Land owns two houses, one that is her residence and one that she rents out (“the rental property”).  She neither owns nor manages any other real estate.  Recently, the family leasing the rental property moved out.  These tenants had two wild children who did extensive damage to the house that cost Lucy considerably more than the security deposit to repair.


After fixing up the house, Lucy put a sign in front of the house that said “For Rent” and gave Lucy’s cell phone number.  Shortly thereafter, she broke her ankle and was forced to wear a cast for several weeks.


Lucy’s mother, Mary, lives across the country from Lucy.  Mary is a real estate agent licensed only in the state where she resides.  When Lucy tells Mary about her broken ankle, Mary insisted on coming to stay with Lucy to “help out.”  Immediately after arriving, Mary found out Lucy was trying to rent her second house. Mary drove over to the rental property “to take a look around.” She then phoned Lucy to say that the house would be more likely to rent if she repainted the bathrooms.  Although Lucy said that it was unnecessary, Mary went ahead and did the painting herself.


While Mary was painting the house, Lucy received phone calls from two prospective tenants and set up appointments with each of them for the following day at the rental property.  She scheduled to meet the first caller, a woman named Renee, at 1:00 p.m. and the second caller, whose name was Kenneth Tuckey, at 2:30 p.m.


The next day, as Mary was driving Lucy over to the rental property for these appointments, Lucy told her mother about the problems with the previous tenants and asked if she had to allow families with children to rent the house.   Mary replied, “Well, I’m not a lawyer, dear, but as far as I know, since you only have two houses, you can do whatever you want.”


At 1:20 p.m., a woman an expensive business suit arrived at the rental property, introduced herself as Renee Red-Eagle, and apologized for being late.  Lucy said, “That’s a very … interesting name.”  Renee explained that she was a member of the Saluki (a Native American tribe, most of whose members lived in the same state as Lucy). Lucy said, “That’s funny, you don’t look like an Indian.”


Renee smiled frostily, and said, “I’m sorry; I was rushing because I was late and forgot to put on my feather.”


Lucy blushed and mumbled, “I’m sorry, I only meant … I thought …” Mary quickly intervened, and gave Renee an application to fill out, then showed Renee around the house.  In the meantime, Lucy called two of Renee’s references, specifically asking them about use of alcohol and Renee’s ability to hold a job.  The references had only positive things to say. 


When Renee and Mary finished touring the house, Lucy explained to Renee that she had another prospective tenant coming to see the house later that afternoon, but said she would call Renee “soon” with a decision.  


Renee then asked if she could bring her nine-year old daughter around to see the house later that afternoon.  Lucy replied, “I’m sorry; you never said anything about living here with a child.  I’m not renting this house out to any more kids.” Renee stormed out.  


Lucy told her mother, “It’s probably just as well.  Most of the Indians in this town are drunks and are usually unemployed.” Mary nodded and said, “Your father, may he rest in peace, never liked Indians.”


Kenneth and Tammy Tuckey, an African-American couple with no children, arrived at 3:00 p.m.  After Mary showed them the house, they filled out an application.  Lucy looked it over and immediately offered the Tuckeys a two-year lease on the house, which they accepted.

3L.  
Nicotine, one of the active ingredients in tobacco-based cigarettes, is a highly addictive drug.  Although each person’s reaction to nicotine withdrawal differs, many long-term smokers who are cut off from the drug experience dizziness, headaches, nausea, and unusual anxiety and irritability for periods lasting up to several months.  


Smokers who continue using cigarettes to satisfy their nicotine addiction and avoid the withdrawal symptoms face ever-increasing risks of developing a variety of health problems, including lung cancer, respiratory disorders like emphysema, and heart disease.  In the last twenty years, smokers in the U.S. also have faced an ever-increasing degree of social stigma.


Smokers who wish to break their nicotine addiction have many options.  At pharmacies, they can purchase gum and skin patches containing small amounts of nicotine (designed to ease the transition away from the drug).  They can get several different kinds of prescription medications from their physicians.  They can choose from among a wide variety of commercially available programs that utilize everything from acupuncture to hypnosis to diet supplements. Or they can go to Cig-Not.


Cig-Not, Inc., operates expensive live-in facilities to assist people who wish to quit smoking.  Patients generally stay in the facilities under the care of a resident physician for three to six months, following an individually-tailored regimen of exercise, diet, and therapy.  Over 80% of the patients are successful in quitting smoking and remaining nicotine-free.  


Cig-Not can run one of its facilities profitably only if it has at least twelve paying patients at the site at all times.  Because patients come and go relatively frequently, Cig-Not needs space for at least sixteen patients to ensure that it always has the necessary twelve. To meet these needs, Cig-Not typically purchases two or three neighboring houses in residential neighborhoods to use jointly as one of its facilities.


Hackenkoff is a relatively wealthy city of about 80,000 people.  City of Hackenkoff Ordinance #86 requires that buildings used for “group homes for persons with disabilities” to be separated by at least 1800 feet (about 1/3 of a mile).  Ordinance #86 states that it has two purposes: 

(A) To ensure that persons with disabilities attempting to live in residential communities are not crowded into a “disabled ghetto.” 

(B) To spread out the additional parking, traffic and needs for social services that often accompany group homes.


Recently, Cig-Not purchased two adjacent five-bedroom houses in a well-to-do Hackenkoff neighborhood.  It applied for a variance from Ordinance #86 to allow it to operate the two houses jointly as a single facility.  In support of its application, Cig-Not truthfully stated that it could not afford to run one of its facilities in Hackenkoff in just one of the houses and that it was cost-efficient and therapeutically useful to operate the facility jointly in the two houses to achieve the optimal number of patients. 

  
Hackenkoff is home to a factory that makes Nic-lets, a nicotine-based gum to help smokers quit.  M.T. Thretts, the president of Nic-lets, dislikes Cig-Not because it competes to service people trying to quit smoking.  Thretts told the Hackenkoff Zoning Authority that if Cig-Not opened a facility in Hackenkoff, Nic-lets would relocate its factory to another city.


Subsequently, the Hackenkoff Zoning Authority voted unanimously to deny Cig-Not’s request for a variance, giving the following reasons:

(1) The operation of two adjoining group homes would be likely to yield traffic & parking problems.

(2) Although your facility is a “group home” for the purposes of Ordinance #86, smokers trying to quit smoking are not “disabled” or “handicapped” as defined by the relevant federal statutes, and so are not entitled to any accommodations.

(3)  Losing the jobs associated with the Nic-lets factory would be an undue burden on the city.

Based on the facts above, identify colorable claims that Cig-Not could bring under the federal Fair Housing Act.  For each, discuss any defenses that could be raised and how likely Cig-Not is to prevail.  Assume Cig-Not has standing and the case is ripe.  Assume that neither the smallholders’ exemptions nor the First Amendment would be a defense to any claim.
3M.
Aviron is a little-known American state that has geography and demographics that are very similar to South Florida.  In 1989, Aviron passed a state fair housing statute (AFHA) that was identical to the federal FHA. In the few reported cases decided under AFHA, the state courts have repeatedly stated that, “It is clear that our legislature intended AFHA to be interpreted identically to the federal FHA.”

In 1997, as part of a bill primarily addressing benefits for senior citizens, the Aviron legislature amended AFHA by adding “marital status” (a term that it did not define) to the list of protected characteristics in each provision in which the list appeared.  The only reference to this change in the legislative history is a statement by the bill’s sponsor that, “Aviron competes with other states to attract retirees and so we need to keep up with these states when providing fair housing protection.”  To date, there are no cases interpreting the “marital status” language.  

Aviron has a criminal statute first enacted in 1865 that makes all sexual activity outside of marriage illegal.   The Aviron Supreme Court held in a 1991 case called David v. David that members of unmarried cohabiting couples could receive awards equivalent to alimony after the couple separated.  The following year, the state legislature passed a law that sharply reduced, but did not eliminate, the remedies available under David v. David.   

Robert is a naturalized American citizen, born and raised in French-speaking Canada.  Like many French-Canadians, he lives in Port St. Francis, one of the small beachfront cities in Aviron.  He is president of a corporation that develops beachfront property into apartments and condominiums and then manages the properties. He is currently in the planning stages of a 450-unit apartment complex to be called Mega-Beach.  

Doreen lives a few blocks from the Mega-Beach site. She thinks that French-Canadian developers are ruining Port St. Francis by overdeveloping the beach and by selling or renting units to people who are not good members of the community because only come to Aviron to party.  Doreen discussed the project with a group of like-minded neighbors, and they decided to focus opposition on the high number of unmarried cohabiting couples living in units run by French-Canadian developers.


When the Port St. Francis Zoning Board scheduled time at a public meeting to review the Mega-Beach proposal, Doreen and her allies mailed and handed out hundreds of flyers requesting that residents attend the meeting.  In part, the flyers stated that 

French-Canadian developers have changed the character of our city enough already.  Fully one-half of the people living in sin in Port St. Francis now live in housing managed by French-Canadians.  Let’s stop them before they ruin our beaches with another love nest.

The figure “one-half” was a guess based on Doreen’s knowledge of the town.  Although Doreen was unaware of this, the true number is about 10%.


The night of the meeting, almost two hundred people showed up to oppose the project.  There was not enough space in the meeting room, so many of the opponents stood outside carrying signs that contained rude remarks about French-Canadians and hectoring anyone who they thought might be a developer.  When Tony, the Chairman of the Zoning Board, saw the size of the crowd, he announced that the review of the Mega-Beach project was postponed for two months because there was too much opposition to hear from that day in the time allotted, and that the agenda for next monthly meeting was already full.


When the Board met to review the project two months later, Doreen and her allies again arrived with almost two hundred opponents. After the Board heard Robert’s twenty-five minute description of the project, it allowed the opponents to speak for two hours.  Next, Lillian, a member of the Board and a close friend of Doreen, read a list of 36 objections to various architectural details of the project that she thought Robert would have to address before the Board could approve it.  Although Robert stated that addressing the objections would require a complete redesign of the building, the Board voted unanimously to require him to do so.  Frustrated, Robert sold the site to another developer.

Discuss any statutory fair housing causes of action Robert might have against Port St. Francis and Doreen and how likely they are to succeed.  Assume Robert has standing to raise any statutory issues on behalf of himself and on behalf of his potential future tenants.  Assume that there is insufficient evidence to support a disparate impact claim of any kind.

3N.
Discuss whether, in the following scenario, Alison has violated 42 U.S.C. §3604(a) or (c) by discriminating on the basis of “familial status” or has violated California’s Unruh Act by discriminating on the basis of Zelda’s college major:

Alison owns an apartment building called Empire Estates in a large California city.  It contains 240 two-bedroom apartments, most of which are occupied by young professional singles and couples.  Families with children occupy eleven of the apartments. Until recently, Alison has not had to advertise; enough potential tenants have walked into the rental office to keep the building nearly fully occupied. This spring, because of the economic downturn, Alison began having trouble filling vacancies as quickly as she liked.  As a result, for a few weeks, she tried running an identical advertisement in the student newspapers of several local universities.  

At the top of the advertisement, in very large type, it said, “GOING UP?”  Under the caption was a picture of an open elevator, which contained seven young adults in business attire clearly waiting for the doors to close. Three of those pictured were women.  One woman appeared to be African-American; one man appeared to be Asian-American; and another man, who was olive-skinned, was carrying a Spanish language newspaper.  Five of those pictured carried briefcases; one woman carried a copy of the Wall Street Journal; one man had a copy of Forbes magazine; and one man carried a bottle of champagne.  The text beneath the picture read as follows:   

If you are ready to live like an adult instead of like a student, Empire Estates may be the place for you.  Situated close to the financial district on the East Side, convenient to mass transit and the city’s nightlife, our quiet two-bedroom apartments are perfect living situations to begin your professional career in affordable comfort.  Call 836-555-0434 or visit our rental office at 1199 Villalta Street.   Equal Opportunity Housing.

This advertising campaign succeeded in generating enough additional applications that Alison decided that no further ads were necessary.

Zelda was a 25-year old widow with a three-year old son, Oliver.  Her husband had died in a car accident shortly after Oliver was born.  Zelda was about to graduate with a degree in comparative literature from the University of San Bruno. She had about $15,000 left from the proceeds of her husband’s life insurance policy to tide her over until she could get a job. When she saw Alison’s ad, Zelda thought that the location looked good.  She wondered if the management would be comfortable about having a single mother in the building, but decided to take Oliver and apply for an apartment in person. 

On the application form, she indicated that she was about to receive her degree and she hoped to get a job in publishing in the downtown area near Empire Estates.  Where the form asked for the amount and source of any “other money” available “besides income,” she wrote “$15,000 from Oliver’s father.” When Zelda was done, Alison looked over the form quickly, then commented, “Good luck finding a publishing job; my understanding is that they’re only hiring humanities majors from Ivy League schools right now.” 


Zelda looked unhappy, but said, “I’m sure  I’ll find something.  My grades are good and I have very good references.”


“I’m sure you’ll do fine,” Alison said without much conviction.  She frowned at Oliver, who was quietly playing with his shoelaces.  “What are you planning to do about child care?  We don’t have any day care or recreation areas in the building.”


Zelda replied, “It’s all set.  Until I get my job situation settled and can get him into day care, my mother will come and stay with him during the day and, if it’s nice out, take him to the city parks”  


“Well,” said Alison truthfully, “my usual procedure is to review the applications I get at the end of each week and then call people and let them know what I’ve decided.  I’ll be in touch.”  


At the end of the week, Alison had nine applications for the six apartments she wanted to fill.  She turned down one husband and pregnant wife because she thought they were rude.  She turned down one single woman because she couldn’t reach her references.  She accepted the four applications where one of the applicants already had a job lined up, including one couple with a five-year old girl.  

The three remaining applicants (including Zelda) all were about to graduate and did not yet have jobs. Alison selected the single male engineer and the single female computer scientist, even though they had both indicated much less “other money” than had Zelda.  However, Alison was concerned that, because she had a humanities degree, Zelda would have more trouble finding any job, let alone one that would support Oliver as well.  Moreover, Alison assumed that the $15,000 Zelda listed was some form of child support. Knowing how hard such awards were to collect in practice, she bets that Zelda would not really have access to those funds.

3O.  Laurie owns several apartment buildings in a large university town.  Many of her tenants are foreign citizens studying in the U.S.  Among Laurie’s tenants who are U.S. citizens, 88% practice some form of Christianity and 5% practice Islam.  Among the tenants who are not U.S. citizens, 52% practice some form of Christianity and 39% practice Islam.

  After the 9/11/01 terrorist attacks, Laurie was mortified to discover that one of the hijackers had lived in one of her buildings for five months in early 2001. Subsequently, several of her frightened tenants threatened to move out unless she stopped renting to non-citizens.

Instead, Laurie adopted a new “Security Check on Immigrants Policy” (“SCIP”).  Pursuant to SCIP, any tenants who were not U.S. Citizens had to agree to submit to unannounced searches of their units once every four to six weeks.  Laurie conducted the searches herself in the presence of the tenant and an official from the Immigration and Naturalization Service.  Laurie’s adoption of SCIP seemed to mollify the tenants who had threatened to leave, and almost all of them continued to rent from Laurie.

Rahmy, a Jordanian citizen and a Muslim, is a graduate student in computer science.  He rents a first floor apartment from Laurie, but has asked to switch to a quieter upper floor apartment if one becomes available. The first few SCIP searches of Rahmy’s apartment went very smoothly.  

A few weeks ago, Laurie came to Rahmy’s apartment to do another SCIP search. He asked if they could do the search another time because he was busy working on a project that was due the next day.  She refused and insisted he shut down his new laptop computer and open it up “to make sure it really is what it looks like.”  When he objected, she screamed, 

Look, I’ve been made a fool of once already by you people and I’ll be damned if I’m going to let some anti-American anti-Christian nut run a terrorist operation here, so if you are really the innocent student you want me to think you are, open up the damn computer.  If you don’t like it, you’re free to move out any time and let Allah find you a better place to live.

Stunned, Rahmy opened up his computer and there was no further discussion.  Three days later, Laurie sought out Rahmy to apologize, saying she had been very tired when she had yelled at him and had been out of line.


John is a U.S. citizen who had a cousin killed in the attack on the World Trade Center.  He is the founder of a post-9/11 anti-immigrant organization called Putting Real Americans First & Foremost (“PRAFF”), which advocates stronger security measures and has often taken an openly anti-Muslim stance.  


John lives on the fifth floor of Rahmy’s building.  More than two dozen other members of PRAFF rent apartments from Laurie. Since 9/11, whenever a vacancy has arisen in one of Laurie’s buildings, PRAFF members have located several potential tenants to apply.  The PRAFF applicants have all been Christian U.S. citizens.  Laurie has rented several apartments to PRAFF applicants, but sometimes has chosen to reject PRAFF applicants in favor of others including some Muslims and foreign citizens.


When a vacancy opened up on the fifth floor of his building, Rahmy submitted an application.   One night when Rahmy was returning late to his own apartment, John stepped out from around the corner and walked up to Rahmy, who nervously backed up against the door to his unit.  Moving to within a few inches of Rahmy, John smiled unpleasantly and said, “You should know, you heathen A-Rab, that I’m going to make real sure that I won’t have any of you murdering cowards living up on my floor.”  John then walked away without touching Rahmy.


John made sure there were seven different PRAFF applicants for the apartment Rahmy wanted, but Laurie rented it to Rahmy anyway.

Discuss any causes of action Rahmy might have under the FHA and how likely they are to succeed.  You should assume that: 

· It is not “national origin” discrimination to do SCIP only for foreign citizens.

· Laurie would not be liable for any of behavior of John or PRAFF.

· The U.S. Government has no FHA liability for sending an INS agent to oversee Laurie’s searches.

· Searches pursuant to SCIP are not explicitly forbidden under any federal or state statute.

3P.  Based on the facts below, discuss whether Gloria could succeed on any of the following claims against Andy and Wesley: (1) that their ad indicated a preference based on sex, violating FHA §3604(c); (2) that they intentionally denied her housing because of her sex, violating FHA §3604(a); and (3) that preferring tenants who have a higher “TNT score” or who use Macintosh computers is arbitrary, violating California’s Unruh Act.


Wealthy software engineers Andy Allenson & Wesley Wu built an apartment complex called Techno-Towers in Northern California that they had specifically designed for computer industry professionals. The complex consisted of four towers surrounding a central courtyard.  Each tower contained 20 one-bedroom apartments, 20 two-bedroom apartments, a small gym, laundry facilities, and an entire floor consisting of reading rooms and gaming rooms available to all tenants in the building.   


Wesley, in charge of advertising, decided simply to run a single full page ad repeatedly in several computer and technology magazines.  The headline across the top of the ad said, “Finally, a place for techno-geeks to feel at home.” Underneath the heading were six photographs [described in detail on the next page].  Underneath the photos was the following text:

You know who you are.  You never quite fit in.  Too much time at the screen.  Not enough time on the ball field.  Trouble getting dates.  Beat up in gym class.  Programming (nearly) as interesting as porn. Even now that you’re grown up, your apartment is still just a place to stash your stuff.  Not designed to fit your life.  Nobody designs to fit your life. Until now.  

Check out Techno-Towers.  Prime Silicon Valley location.  State-of-the-art security.  Wireless internet in every apartment, common areas, courtyard.  Huge living/dining rooms with built-in bookshelves, entertainment center wired for cable, two computer workstations.  Common rooms for video gaming on giant screens.  Common rooms for role-play gaming.  Website with tenant chat rooms (general and special interest).  

Leases of one year or more from $2500 a month.

Wheelchair accessible apartments available.

Equal Opportunity Housing.

Layout of Pictures in Techno-Towers Ad: 

[image: image1]
P1 = Central courtyard.  Asian-Amer. Male (mid-30s); Anglo Male (late 20s) working on laptops at table, each with open bottle of imported beer.

P2 = Common room. Giant screen TV with video game in progress.  Two males playing game seen from rear in silhouette against screen.

P3 = Furnished interior of apartment. No people.  Built-in bookshelves full (some computer science textbooks and paperback science fiction titles visible). Macintosh computer with elaborate accessories set up on desk.  Large TV.  Papers and books scattered on surfaces.  Chinese food take-out boxes by computer.  Large Star Trek poster on wall to one side.

P4 = Computer & security control room.  No people.  Very space age looking room with lots of monitors with views of the buildings, courtyard and  lobby.  Fancy control panel and lots of computer equipment.

P5 = Common room. Large table covered with fantasy gaming pieces; around table five males (all 20s-30s): short Chicano; light-skinned African-Amer.; skinny blond Anglo; chubby Asian Amer.; and tall Anglo with graying brown hair and beard in role of dungeon master. In background, Asian-Amer. female (early 20s) entering room carrying tray of snack foods.

P6 = Interior room.  Dark-skinned African-Amer. female with big glasses (12-13); Asian-Amer. male with same big glasses (same age) working together at screen of a Macintosh computer. She’s typing; he’s laughing.

  
Andy, in charge of tenant selection, created an application form he called the “Tech-Noledge-Test” (“TNT”), designed to identify tenants with significant computer experience. The TNT also asked questions that Andy thought were related but less important such as whether the applicants enjoyed games, chat rooms, fantasy novels, and Star Trek. Andy set a minimum acceptable score on the TNT and a minimum acceptable credit rating.  


Wesley’s ad attracted lots of applicants. Andy and Wesley together interviewed every applicant who met both minimums.  They generally preferred the applicants with the highest TNT scores. However, because they were both going to live in the complex, they occasionally rejected someone with a high score who made them uncomfortable during the interview.  In a very short time, all but one of the apartments were rented.  


Gloria Mundy is a marketing executive for IBM.  Although she knows a lot about the products she works with, she is not herself a programmer.  She did not find the Techno-Towers ad very appealing, but she liked the location and some of the features, so she applied anyway.  She had the highest possible credit rating and got just over the minimum acceptable score on the TNT.  At the time Andy and Wesley interviewed her for the last remaining apartment, they had no other applicants left who met the minimum criteria.


The interview did not go particularly well.  Gloria was late because a bus broke down, blocking traffic on the freeway.  Wesley kept staring at her, which made her uncomfortable. Andy was irritated that she liked Deep Space Nine better than The Next Generation.  Wesley, who, like many in the industry, prefers Macintosh computers, was astonished that she had never owned one and had no interest in getting one.   


After she left, Wesley said, “She’s a babe.  Way too hot, man.  Don’t want her here. Too distracting.”


Andy, who was gay, laughed, and said, “I wouldn’t say the same thing if she were a guy.”


“Don’t want hot guys here either,” Wesley replied. “Too much competition.  Anyway, let’s wait a couple days. See if  anyone else applies.”


Three days later, they interviewed and accepted a male software engineer who had a much higher TNT score than Gloria and used a Macintosh.  Wesley told Gloria they had chosen the other applicant because of the TNT score and the Macintosh, but that they would keep her application on file.

3Q.  CHOOSE YOUR POISON:  Ivy Vine, an African-American woman, owned an apartment complex in Lomax, a college town in the Midwest.  The complex consisted of three large square apartment buildings, each with its own large courtyard in the middle, and a rectangular administration building. The buildings were arranged roughly in the shape of  a clover (see chart), so the complex was known as Shamrock Estates.  


[image: image2]
Each of the three apartment buildings in the complex had developed its own separate character:  

The West Building was closest to the college and housed a disproportionate number of students and college staff.  It tended to be noisier than the other buildings and, on sunny days, residents could be found in the courtyard working on their tans.  

 The East Building was situated right next to a bus stop on a bus line that went to nearby shopping areas and the senior citizens’ center.  The residents of the east building were disproportionately, but not exclusively, elderly.  The courtyard of the east building was primarily used by retired residents playing bocce ball.

The North Building was right across the street from an elementary school and had a playground in its central courtyard.  Its residents were disproportionately families with children.  

Professor Susan Mack, who had taught in a small college outside New Orleans before Hurricane Katrina, recently accepted a teaching position at the college in Lomax and was looking for an apartment nearby.  When Susan arrived at Shamrock Estates, she explained to Ivy that she was starting a job at the college.  Ivy, frowning a bit at hearing Susan’s strong Louisiana accent, replied, “I’d heard that they had opened up some staff positions so they could take in Katrina refugees.”

“I will be teaching in the Economics Department,” Susan said frostily. 

“Oh, I’m sorry, honey. It’s just that we’ve had so many poor refugees from your part of the country, I just thought you must be one of them.”

Ivy then showed Susan a unit in the East Building.  Susan inquired about the many senior citizens sitting or playing bocce in the courtyard.  Ivy explained that the east building had coincidentally tended to attract older folks, but that the other two buildings were quite different.  Susan replied that she’d like to see some units in those buildings “because we’ll find it very hard to feel at home with all these … elderly folks all around us.” 

“Oh, who else will be living with you?”

“My son.” said Susan.

Ivy broke into a big smile.  “Oh why didn’t you say so right off?  I have a perfect place for you.” Ivy then took Susan to a ground floor apartment in the north building. Outside the window, many pre-school children played loudly on the playground in the courtyard.  Susan asked why there were so many kids.

Ivy answered, “Because of the playground and the school across the street, a lot of families with children have ended up in the north building.  Mostly they love having a nice safe kid-friendly place with lots of other parents around to help each other out.”

“How nice. I want something a lot quieter and a little more civilized.”

“Well, Sue, it’s a lot quieter at night here and you and your boy could really learn to enjoy your new neighbors and the nice family atmosphere.”

“It’s Susan, thank you.  Do you have any units in the third building?”

“Well, Susan,” Ivy said with a bit of an edge, “I really don’t think the West Building is for you. It is where I put all the college students, and it isn’t a family kind of place.  If you want more quiet, I could show you something on the top floor in this building that would be better for you and your boy than anything in West.”

“I imagine my boy, who is about to turn sixteen, would rather be with the college students than the rug rats.  Do you have units open in West?”

“Well, Sue, you might have told me his age to begin with.  I do have one unit in West that will become available in a few days if you really want to see it.”  Ivy took Susan to an apartment that had not yet been vacated (or even recently cleaned) by its three sophomore tenants.  As Susan stood uncomfortably in the middle of the living room trying not to touch anything, Ivy said (in a tone appropriate for young children), “You see, you really don’t want to live in West.  I’ve got two other units in North I can show you that really would be more appropriate for you and your little family.” 

“Is there anything else in this building?  I can always go rent on the other side of the college if you don’t have anything for me.”

“Oh you wouldn’t want to do that.  Lord, in the last few years a whole bunch of folks who don’t speak English have moved in over there and the schools are a mess.  And now with all the white trash up from New Orleans, the whole neighborhood is dying.  You’re much better off here.”

“How dare you call the poor refugees ‘white trash’ while you show me this pig sty,” growled Susan.

Ivy snapped back, “I knew the minute I heard your voice that you thought you were better than me.  Why don’t you get your stuck-up Louisiana behind out of here.  I’m wouldn’t rent to you if you were the last woman on Earth.”  

Susan started to reply, “You b…,” then thought better of it and stormed out.  

Identify any claims under the Civil Rights Act of 1866 or the Fair Housing Act that could be brought against Ivy, and discuss how likely each claim is to succeed and why.   

3R.
Based on the facts below, George Ijo brought an action against the city of Casper in the U.S. District Court for the District of Wyoming, alleging that, by rejecting his proposed housing development, the city had violated §3604(a) and (f).  His complaint included three theories :  

(a) Disparate Impact on African-Americans and persons of Hispanic or Latino origin;

(b) Disparate Treatment because of mobility impairments and other physical impairments; and

(c) Disparate Treatment because of “being regarded as” having mental impairments. 


Discuss the application of each theory to the facts, noting any defenses the city might raise and the strengths and weaknesses of each party’s position.  Wyoming is in the Tenth Circuit, so Bangerter is binding precedent.  Assume that the Tenth Circuit follows the standards articulated in Huntington Branch for assessing disparate impact claims against the government.  


Casper is the second largest city in Wyoming, with a population of about 50,000 people.  According to the 2000 census, the city’s racial make-up, in relevant part, was :  

White persons
94.0%

Black or African American persons
0.9%

Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin 
5.4%


Of the American military personnel who survived fighting in the 1991 Gulf War and the present Iraq War and who are no longer on active duty (“surviving Gulf veterans” or SGVs), about 20% are African-American and about 20% are of Hispanic or Latino origin.  More than 40% of SGVs have one or more physical impairments that would qualify as “handicaps” under the FHA.


George Ijo is a Japanese-American veteran of the 1991 Gulf War, where he lost his left leg below the knee.  Since returning from the war, he has become a successful real estate developer and an ardent advocate for veteran’s interests.  He recently received several large foundation grants to start a long-term project to create several housing complexes in different parts of the country for SGVs and their families.  


George purchased a large parcel of land on the edge of Casper to build one of these complexes.  It was at the bottom of a large hill leading into the nearest shopping and business areas.  On the other side of the parcel, just outside the city limits, were a golf course and a rifle range.  On the hill just above the parcel was a public Junior High School.  The nearest hospital was about three-quarters of a mile away.  


George applied for the necessary permits for the project from the Casper City Commission (CCC).  Although CCC normally scheduled hearings involving zoning permits for weekday mornings, after numerous requests from interested citizens, they arranged to have the meeting in the evening.


George made a presentation about the project at the start of the meeting that included the following information:

· The project would consist of 60 residential units (a mix of single family homes, duplexes and six-unit apartment blocks) arranged around a large central building that would include offices and facilities for recreation, meetings and parties, physical therapy, and medical examinations and minor procedures.

· For the first five years, residents would be limited to SGVs and their families, with at least 50% of the units reserved for SGVs with physical handicaps.  After that, the residents could vote to change the rules and allow other people to live in the complex.

· In addition to a manager and custodial and security staff, the complex would employ one full-time physician specializing in war injuries, three nurses, two physical therapists, and a psychologist with experience working with veterans and their families.  At least one of the nurses would be on site at all times.

· Affidavits from physicians working with George that said they had  examined the site and the plans for construction and found them to be “suitable and appropriate for the access and medical issues likely to arise with the intended population of the complex.”


The public was then invited to speak.  About 50 people addressed the meeting over a three hour period.  Their input included the following:

· Statements supporting veterans and expressing pride, e.g., that Casper would be able to “serve those who’ve served our country.”

· Statements expressing concerns that so many people who were not from Casper or even from Wyoming would be arriving in town at the same time and worry that they would not be able to “fit in” or worry that they’ll “steal jobs” from local folks.

· Statements expressing concern that the Junior High School students “would try to make things difficult for residents with handicaps and others because “we all know how the kids treat people if they think they’re different.” 

· Statements expressing concern for the safety of the residents because there was no physician on duty at night, because the nearest hospital was so far away, and because those residents with disabilities would have difficulty climbing up the hill, especially in winter.

· Statements expressing concern that the proximity to the rifle range, to the golf course, and to the Junior High would expose residents to noise that might be particularly upsetting to SGVs.

· The presentation of a petition signed by 40 residents requesting that the CCC :review the applications of potential residents and make sure that “safety and security issues” are properly considered and that residents would be appropriate for the neighborhood.


At 11:15 p.m., Barbie Blessed, the Chair of the CCC, declared the meeting adjourned, noting, “I know we normally deliberate and vote during the meeting, but it’s very late and we still a lot to talk about.”  The CCC reconvened the following morning in a private session.  Barbie began by saying, “I can’t help it, but it creeps me out. I had an uncle who came back from Vietnam all quiet and cold, barely said a word.  One day, he just snapped and beat my Aunt Jane half to death.


After discussion, the CCC voted 3-2 to deny the permits, with Barbie voting in the majority. They issued a written statement drafted by Barbie, saying that they thought the site was inappropriate and unsafe given the large number of disabled SGVs who would be living at the complex.  The statement specifically noted the lack of a full-time physician, the distance from the hospital, the steepness of the hill leading into town, and the proximity of the rifle range and the “unruly” Junior High School students.

3S
Based on the facts below, Scott brought an action against Abrams County in the U.S. District Court for the District of Connecticut, alleging that, by rejecting his proposed housing development, the county had violated §3604(a).  His complaint included three theories:  

(1) Disparate Impact/Familial Status; (Spring 2009: Ignore This)
(2) Disparate Treatment/Familial Status; and

(3) Disparate Treatment/National Origin (Eastern Europeans)


Discuss the application of each theory to the facts, noting the strengths and weaknesses of each party’s position.  Connecticut is in the Second Circuit, so the Court of Appeals decision in Huntington Branch is binding precedent.  Assume Scott has standing to bring these claims.


Abrams County is directly north of New London, Connecticut.  The northern two-thirds of the county contains residential neighborhoods and businesses targeting suburban consumers.  When New London was thriving in the 1940s, small factories and transportation and storage facilities covered most of the southern third of the county. With relatively few residences in the southern third, Abrams County put only a couple of elementary schools there and bused the children north for junior and senior high school.  


As New London declined economically, many businesses in the southern third of Abrams County failed or relocated, leaving behind abandoned warehouses and factories.  In 2001, the Abrams County Development Council (ACDC) authorized a redevelopment plan (2001 Plan) to try to address the blighted areas in the southern third.  

The 2001 Plan designated a large area as an Opportunity Zone (OZ) and offered incentives for developers to build there.  The Plan rezoned the OZ to allow multi-unit residential housing but, because of the lack of schools, units in the new complexes could have no more than two bedrooms.  To make them attractive to professionals from New London, it also required that the units be relatively large with extensive amenities. The 2001 Plan stated that, as more schools were built, the ACDC would consider further rezoning to allow multi-unit complexes targeted at moderate income families.  Unfortunately, as of 2006, only a few apartment complexes were built in the OZ and the county had built no new schools.

Scott, a developer, did extensive research into the possibility of building apartments in the OZ.  He discovered that the New London area had more than enough housing appropriate for urban professionals.  However, there was a significant need for moderate-income housing for clerical,  government, and service industry workers and their families.  He then purchased a very large plot of land in the OZ.

Scott and his staff designed a two-story apartment building that consisted of 24 two- and three bedroom apartments arranged around a central courtyard where children could play safely.  He filed the appropriate documents with the ACDC to request rezoning to allow him to build twelve of these buildings on his property in the OZ, along with a strip mall containing a grocery store, a drug store, and other retail outlets.  

In his documentation, Scott provided evidence that he had done appropriate investigation to conclude there were no hazardous wastes on the properties he purchased.  He also showed that he had received approval from the state to receive grant money to pay for some of the infrastructure (e.g., fire hydrants, stop signs, traffic lights) required by the new development. 

He also laid out extensive local market research showing that between 70% and 80% of the units in his buildings were likely to be occupied by families with children as compared with 20% of the units in the buildings with larger units that had already been completed under the 2001 Plan.  He also provided a national study that showed that families with children were significantly more likely to rent apartments in his intended price range than in the price range contemplated by the 2001 plan.  The study concluded that families with children who had higher incomes purchased houses instead of renting more expensive apartments.

ACDC includes seven councilmen, each elected from a separate geographical district.  Two of the districts, represented by Betsy and Chris, include part of the southern third of the county.  The other five districts, including those represented by David and Esther, are entirely residential areas in the northern part of the county.  Pursuant to its usual procedures, ACDC solicited feedback from the public, then held a closed hearing to discuss Scott’s rezoning proposal, at which County officials and lawyers said there were no legal hurdles to approving the proposal and that the County had money in the budget to cover the necessary expenditures.

Betsy and Chris strongly urged the project be approved to boost the economy in their districts, reminding the others that ACDC typically followed the lead of the councilmen for the district where a project was located. They pointed out that Scott was very successful with prior development efforts.  They acknowledged that the county would have to spend some money for related infrastructure, but pointed out that the state grant would cover about half of what was needed.

Chris noted that school district officials had indicated they could handle the planned influx of children, but David and Esther expressed concern that teachers at the schools involved would have their hands full with larger classes that included many students new to the area.

Esther worried that the neighborhood was not appropriate for children in general.  She worried about leftover hazardous waste:  “I know he has checked everything out, but how can they really be sure?”  She worried that there was no mass transit near by.  She worried that, “It’s such an ugly place to bring up children. Who would want to grow up there?” She also worried that the parents wouldn’t have enough places to shop.

David said, “Look, we all know what’s really going on here. He’s going to fill the place up with those Eastern European immigrants with names like eye charts who are all over New London these days.  People in my district won’t stand for having their schools filling up with children of Russians and Transylvanians and whoever that grew up in Communist countries and don’t know how to behave in America.”  Esther acknowledged that some of her constituents said things like that, but said “It’s garbage.” 

ACDC voted 4-3 to reject Scott’s proposal.  David and Esther voted with the majority; Betsy and Chris were on the losing side.  After further discussion, ACDC issued a written statement saying rezoning was denied because there were too many concerns about adding such a large number of new residents into an area that still was primarily industrial.
QUESTION IIIT
Based on the facts below, Cornelia Collins and Trace Turnblad brought an action against Lincoln and Edna Larkin in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California, alleging violations of the federal FHA and California’s Unruh Act.  Their complaint included three theories :  

(1) Failure to grant reasonable accommodations and or modifications in violation of §3604(f). 

(2) Disparate Treatment: denial of housing because of race (inter-racial couple) in violation of §3604(a); and 

(3) Disparate Treatment/Arbitrary Discrimination because of family connections (daughter of Bull Collins) in violation of the Unruh Act.


Discuss the application of each theory to the facts, noting the strengths and weaknesses of each party’s position.  Assume that the Larkins concede that Cornelia being the daughter of Bull Collins was a substantial factor in their decision to turn down the plaintiffs’ application but that they contest that this violated the Unruh Act.  


Lincoln and Edna Larkin, an African-American couple, own and manage Maybelle Manor, a large apartment building on San Francisco’s very chic Von Tussle Avenue.  To enter the building from Von Tussle Avenue, you climb six marble steps from the sidewalk to the entranceway, where a uniformed doorman opens the polished mahogany doors leading you into the main lobby.  There you’ll find the front desk and the elevators to the upper floors.  Just 30 feet away from the front entrance, at the corner of Seaweed Street (named for its many Sushi bars), is a city bus stop.


To get to Maybelle Manor’s rear entrance from the front, you would turn onto Seaweed Street and walk a long city block downhill, then turn onto Wilbur Avenue (which runs parallel to Von Tussle).  About halfway down the block on Wilbur is a dark alley called Penny Lane, which goes uphill again about half a block to the back of Maybelle Manor.  There, a flight of three steps takes you to a set of heavy metal doors that lead into a large maintenance and storage room.  From there, another set of heavy metal doors opens into an 80-foot carpeted hallway leading to the front lobby.


Cornelia Collins is the youngest daughter of Clyde “Bull” Collins, the notoriously racist white chief of police in 1960s Baltimore. Completely rejecting her father’s beliefs, Cornelia became a civil rights lawyer.

Cornelia is married to Trace Turnblad, a prominent African-American clothing designer who specialized in clothes for “plus-sized” women. The couple have lived for many years in a large house they own in a wealthy suburb of San Francisco.  However, Trace recently developed a degenerative muscular disorder and he now must use a wheelchair most of the time.  The couple decided to rent an apartment in San Francisco to make it easier for him to get to work, to social engagements, and to entertainment venues.

Cornelia and Trace fell in love with one of the “penthouse” apartments at the top of Maybelle Manor.  The large hallways and rooms made use of his wheelchair possible and the view was spectacular.  However, to get into the building, Trace needed help from the doorman and Cornelia to climb the stairs while another employee followed behind carrying the wheelchair.

Cornelia and Trace easily satisfied all the financial requirements for renting the apartment, but before finalizing the lease, they set up a meeting with the Larkins to discuss some details, including the construction of a ramp for Trace to get into the building without help.  Lincoln, who made most of the business decisions about the building, took Cornelia to look at the entrances while Edna and Trace had coffee in the Lincolns’ apartment.  

“How did you end up with her?” Edna asked.

Trace raised an eyebrow.  “You mean with a white woman?”  

“No. Well, yes. No, not really.  It’s just that she reminds me of someone….” Edna thought for a minute, then giggled.  “Doesn’t she wear an awful lot of hairspray?”

Trace laughed.  “She does like to have everything under control.  When I just met her, I went to see her argue a big case in Virginia, trying to get some raggedy-ass school district to treat its black kids as good as white folk.  She had everything really prepared, all these papers laid out, under control, like she put hairspray on the whole case. But then she started to talk, and there was so much fire and passion. I thought, if I can get her to care for me half as much as she cares about this case, I’ll be one lucky man.”

Edna shook her head.  “Well, good for you if that’s so, but when I look at the two of you together, something just bothers me ….”


Meanwhile, Cornelia was telling Lincoln that, if he would construct a ramp at the front entrance for Trace, she would be willing to sign a five-year lease.  He said that he was hoping they could put the ramp at the back entrance where the door was closer to the ground and where it wouldn’t affect the look of the building on Von Tussle Avenue.  

Cornelia noted there were a lot of problems with the back entrance.  Trace would probably need help getting through the doors in and out of the maintenance room. To get to and from the bus stop, Trace would have to go both uphill and downhill in the wheelchair.  She also worried that if they came home late at night, Penny Lane would be dangerous.

Lincoln worried that a ramp in front that looked good enough for the neighborhood would be very expensive.  Cornelia said she might be willing to pay for it, even though she thought it was his responsibility.  They agreed to check into the cost of the front ramp and meet again.

When they met in the Larkins’ apartment a few days later, Lincoln had an estimate of $65,000 and Cornelia had an estimate of $38,000 using less fancy materials.  He said he didn’t think the city would allow her version, but she said she’d represent him for free in front of the zoning board and was confident she could win.  He also said that she would need to place money in escrow to cover the cost of removing the ramp when they moved out, but she said he didn’t need to remove it, so no escrow was needed.  

While they were discussing this, Cornelia had rolled up the papers containing her estimate and was tapping the paper tube against the table for emphasis.  At that moment, Edna walked in with a tray of snacks, saw what Cornelia was doing, and dropped the tray on the floor.  “You’re Bull Collins’s daughter!” she yelled.  Startled, Cornelia said, “Yes, but….”

Edna cut her off.  “I thought I recognized you.  Fire and passion? Oh, no.  No, no, no.” She ran out of the room.  Lincoln explained that Edna had been badly beaten by Baltimore police at a demonstration about integrating a dance club when she was a teenager.  Cornelia stammered out an apology and she and Lincoln agreed to talk further at a later time.

The next day, Lincoln called Cornelia and said, “We can’t go through with the lease.  I wasn’t crazy about the ramp out front ….  Well, we might have worked that out.  But we’re just too uncomfortable having Bull Collins’s kin under our roof.”

QUESTION 3U: Based on the facts below, identify and discuss the strengths and weaknesses of any colorable disparate treatment claims under §3604(a) or discriminatory advertising claims under §3604(c) that might be raised against Father George and the Starr Foundation by John or Paul for discrimination on the basis of National Origin or Religion.  If you believe that mixed motives analysis might be relevant to any §3604(a) claim, simply state that belief; do not try to work through the mixed motives analysis or discuss whether Price Waterhouse would apply. 


The Starr Foundation is a non-profit corporation dedicated to making life easier for people who choose to immigrate to the U.S.  Most of its energies are devoted to poor and working class immigrants, but it has a few projects targeting those who are more affluent.  


In 2001, a new 120-unit apartment complex was about to open in San Francisco when its developer declared bankruptcy.  The Starr Foundation purchased the empty complex and named it “Strawberry Fields,” intending to use it as a kind of upscale halfway house for recent immigrants.  The notion was that new arrivals to the U.S. could rent an apartment there for up to two years and receive, in addition to living space, a variety of services including help with the immigration process, practical information about living in San Francisco, and information about how to contact people or organizations that share the immigrant’s heritage, language, or religion .


The Foundation decided to allow some U.S. citizens to rent housing at Strawberry Fields because its lawyers were aware that limiting rentals to immigrants might run afoul of national origin protections in the FHA  The Foundation’s Board of Directors also believed that the presence of some Americans in the complex might help integrate recent arrivals from other countries.  However, the Foundation decided to require that all tenants, even the Americans, be new to San Francisco. 


To manage Strawberry Fields, the Foundation hired Father George McKenzie, a Roman Catholic priest with extensive experience providing social services to immigrants.  The complex was an immediate success and soon there were many more applications than available apartments.  Father George had to develop some procedures to help choose among them.

He decided to collect applications for a month at a time in anticipation of vacancies that would arise when the tenants’ two year maximum stay ended or if they otherwise had reason to leave.  At the end of each month, he would fill the vacancies from among that month’s applicants who were financially qualified, giving some priority to: 

· renting to applicants who spoke the greatest number of languages (because they were more likely to make connections with other tenants);

· renting to applicants from countries less well-represented among existing tenants (for diversity and to create connections with more different immigrant groups); and

· maintaining between 15% and 25% Americans in the complex (enough to help the others assimilate, but not enough to significantly exclude the immigrants who were the primary intended beneficiaries of the project).
Coming To San Francisco To Start A New Life? 

Ready To Live In America 

But Not Quite Ready To Be An American?

CONSIDER STRAWBERRY FIELDS

Two and Three Bedroom Apartments 

from $1400-1800/month 

Brand New Kitchens and Bathrooms; Washer/Dryer in Units; Wall-to-Wall Carpeting; Gym; Full-Time Security Guard; Three Meeting Rooms for Tenant Events 
Desirable Location 

555 Durella Street near Abbey Road

Easy Access

To Mass Transit

To Churches of Most Major Christian Denominations, Synagogues and Mosques 

(Weekly Catholic Mass on Premises) 

To Mexican, Japanese, Filipino, Russian, Korean Community Centers 
Handicapped Accessible Units Available
Special Services for Recent Arrivals:

Immigration Counseling

Connections to Others from Your Homeland

Organized Social Events with Other Tenants

Staff Members Speak 23 Languages
 Call 650-232-8537    
Equal Housing Opportunity

Father George developed a standard flyer that contained text but not pictures.  The flyer is reproduced on the previous page.
 He distributed the flyer to employment agencies and employers who worked with professionals from overseas. He had the text translated into eleven languages and ran it as an ad in the on-board magazines of international airlines.   


He also did a version of the flyer that did not contain the section on “services for recent arrivals” or the language, “Ready to live in America, but not quite ready to be an American?”  He sent this version to domestic employers and ran it as an ad in domestic airline magazines.


In May 2008, John, a computer programmer from Cleveland, relocated to San Francisco and successfully applied for an apartment at Strawberry Fields.  Although Father George felt that the complex had nearly the maximum number of U.S. citizens that he should allow, John speaks Czech (plus Japanese, French, Spanish and Cie), and one of the new tenants who was having trouble making friends was from the Czech Republic.


Father George met with John when he moved in When he began to talk about the availability of religious services, John revealed that he was a member of the Church of the Spirit of the Expanding Gospel.  CSEG is a very small Christian denomination that believes each of its members has a duty to God to live strictly in accordance with New Testament teachings and to continually try to lead others to join the church and live accordingly.  


Father George visibly shuddered when he heard John belonged to CSEG because his experience was that its members greatly annoyed people around them with constant attempts to persuade them to the CSEG view of the world.  He told John, “You can believe whatever you want, but its very important in a place like this that you respect the views of others.  Please be careful about how you spread your gospel.  Don’t let me hear that other tenants think you are harassing them.” 


John was a warm friendly man and although he would talk about CSEG to anyone who had a conversation with him for more than five minutes, he rarely annoyed his fellow tenants.  In the ten months after John arrived, the only tenant who complained was the man from the Czech Republic, who had almost nobody else to talk to and so got more than his fair share of John’s preaching.  Despite the lack of complaints, at several social events when Father George saw John talking about CSEG to another tenant, he would ask him to stop.  John would always smile and comply.


Meanwhile, the number of American citizens in the complex had increased slightly, to almost 30% of the tenancies.  The Board of Directors of the Starr Foundation held a meeting and strongly suggested to Father George that he needed to reduce the percentage to bring the complex more into line with the Foundation’s primary purpose of helping immigrants.  Annoyed, Father George returned to the complex to attend a social event, where he found John preaching in Japanese to a newly arrived Electronics Engineer.  He got very angry, and said, “I’ve told you not to bother the other tenants with all that.  I’m going to have to ask you to leave the complex.  You have two weeks to get out.”


John’s friend Paul, also a programmer and a member of CSEG, was looking to relocate from Cleveland to San Francisco.  He and John had discussed the possibility that Paul would apply for an apartment at Strawberry Fields.  When John was evicted, he told Paul not to bother applying, saying “Father George doesn’t want more Americans and he doesn’t want CSEG members.”  


Paul replied, “I’m sure you’re right.  I just got off a Lufthansa flight and there was this ad in German for the place that made it pretty clear they only want immigrants. It’s too bad.  I really was going to apply, but I guess I won’t bother now.”
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� For movie trivia buffs, 555 Durella Street is referenced in What’s Up Doc (1973), which contains the best comic chase scene ever filmed.  The phone number, of course, is 650-BEATLES.





